Decisions effective from the 26th June 2019 unless they are called in or are recommended to the Council for approval

Cabinet

Minutes of a Meeting of the Cabinet held in the Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Tannery Lane, Ashford on the 13th June 2019.

Present:

Cllr. Clarkson (Chairman); Cllr. Bartlett (Vice-Chairman):

Cllrs. Barrett, Bell, Buchanan, Clokie, Feacey, Gideon, Pickering, Shorter.

Apologies:

Cllrs. Forest, Link.

Also Present:

Cllrs. Anckorn, Mrs Bell, Burgess, Campkin, Chilton, Harman, Iliffe, Mulholland, Ovenden, Spain, Sparks, Ward, Wright.

Chief Executive, Director of Law and Governance, Director of Finance and Economy, Head of HR and Customer Services, Head of Corporate Property and Projects, Head of Finance and IT, Head of Legal and Democracy, Head of Community Safety and Wellbeing, Head of Culture, Head of Environment and Land Management, Head of Corporate Policy, Economic Development and Communications, Head of Planning and Development, Head of Housing, Communications and Marketing Manager, Tourism and Heritage Manager, Senior Accountant (LF), Senior Accountant (MH), Senior Policy and Scrutiny Officer, Heritage Development Officer, Member Services Manager (Operational).

32 Minutes

Resolved:

That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Cabinet held on the 11th April 2019 be approved and confirmed as a correct record.

33 Leader's Announcements

The Leader said he was delighted to note that Jo James, Chief Executive of the Kent Invicta Chamber of Commerce, had been awarded an OBE in the Queen's Birthday Honours List. She was a great friend of Ashford and did an enormous amount of work in assisting and improving the economy of, and tourism in, Kent. He had already taken the opportunity to congratulate her and considered that the honour was richly deserved.

34 Financial Outturn 2018/19

The report presented the outturn revenue position for the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account for the 2018/19 financial year. It also presented the capital outturn for capital works and how these had been financed, reserve transfers and a treasury management update. The Cabinet's last update in February, based on the third quarter position, had forecast a General Fund deficit of £104,000. Since then there had been a slightly improved position through the last quarter, with a final outturn position of £72,000. The Portfolio Holder introduced the report and drew attention to the tabled paper which reported some minor adjustments to the figures. He also thanked the staff who worked so hard on compiling the reports and his predecessor as Portfolio Holder, Councillor Shorter.

Both the Portfolio Holder and the Leader drew attention to the creation of an Economic Risk Fund which had now been significantly increased to £2.7m. It was considered that this demonstrated the resilience of the Council's treasury management arrangements, which were a vital part of allowing the Authority to be independent of Government Grant and to be able to continue offering the lowest Council Tax in Kent.

Resolved:

- That (i) the financial outturn for 2018/19 be noted.
 - (ii) the Annual Treasury Management position and the strategic treasury management review, shown at Appendix B to the report, be noted.
 - (iii) the increase in the Coachworks budget from £850,000 to £950,000 be approved.

35 Ashford Borough Council Annual Performance Report 2018/19

The Leader of the Council introduced the report which provided a summary of some of the achievements and milestones of the Council over the course of the last financial year, as well as providing commentary of Key Performance Indicators from across the Council's services.

The Deputy Leader referred to the statistic that 18% of residents still did not participate in recycling and wondered if more plastic bags could be provided to encourage people to do this properly if they did not have the correct or sufficient containers. The Head of Environment and Land Management confirmed that the Council would be happy to provide extra recycling containers free of charge for residents who requested them, as well as extra plastic bags where needed. The Council was working on an article for the next edition of Ashford For You and would include that information within it. In response to a further question she confirmed that the plastic bags themselves were recyclable.

Resolved:

That the contents of the Annual Performance Report be noted and its publication on the Council's website be approved.

36 Ashford's Approach to Health and Wellbeing

The Portfolio Holder introduced the report which highlighted some of Ashford's activity during 2018/19 to improve the health and wellbeing of its residents. It also highlighted changes made in approach and the new priorities for delivery during 2019/20 and onwards. The report also sought to amend Ashford's constitution in order to enable effective partnership working at the Ashford Health and Wellbeing Partnership. She advised that the health and wellbeing of residents was a key priority of this Administration and the development of the Council's new Corporate Plan and to achieve their goals, working with partners would be crucial. She wanted to thank those who had worked in this area over the last year from the Council and, in particular, from partner organisations both locally and sub-regionally. The new Ashford Health and Wellbeing Partnership would focus on three key priority areas: - working together to ensure there was a fit for purpose health infrastructure in Ashford; continuing to be the vanguard of innovation - building on Ashford's fantastic One You model; and tackling health inequalities in the Borough.

The Portfolio Holder said it was worth drawing particular attention to One You – Ashford's flagship response to health and wellbeing issues in the Borough. This continued to go from strength to strength, so much so that it had had to move premises much earlier than originally thought and she was delighted to announce that the new One You shop would be opening at the beginning of July. This would be a fantastic new community facility – free to access and for all to take advantage of. It would include an increased number of consultation rooms, kitchen facilities, practical learning, and exercise space and a family area, as well as a changing places toilet. This was all made possible by the financial investment of the last Administration and she encouraged everybody to visit and make use of the wide range of services delivered at the shop.

In accordance with Procedure Rule 9.3 Mr Crompton, a local resident, had requested to speak on this item. He advised that he wanted to discuss the wellbeing of the most vulnerable sector of society – disabled and vulnerable people. Officers and Members would be aware that he had previously raised the issue of disabled adaptations to housing and Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs). He referred to examples at other Local Authorities where this had not been dealt with properly and that Council had been forced to pay appellants compensation for discrimination and disadvantage suffered. This Council also had its own alternative process in place for dealing with Council tenants. and this placed it at risk of also being at odds with the statutory entitlement through Disabled Facilities Grants. He considered such problems would not exist if the Council treated people equally. He referred to an issue he had previously raised with the Council and not received a response to in that people had statutory entitlements. In 1990 mandatory grants were introduced by the Government, and DFG was the last one to remain mandatory. All an individual had to do was make a valid application and it became a statutory requirement, it was not a case of the Council having to cut other budgets as he had previously been advised. If people did not meet their statutory obligation of paying their Council Tax, the Council would prosecute and take them to court, so he considered disabled people should not treat this Council any differently if their applications were not honoured. In his view this was all about the Council treating people fairly and honouring their pledges to Council tenants, without forcing them to move because they could not have their homes adapted. Case law was very clear that

CA 130619

"Local Housing Authorities were not entitled to take resources in to account in deciding whether or not approve a DFG for Section 23 purposes". He also pointed to the Council's policy of removing adaptions that they deemed no longer necessary and wondered where that left disabled residents?

The Leader said that when he took his position six years ago he had made it clear to the Housing department that adaptations to houses for disabled people was a high priority for him and he was less interested in renewing kitchens at regular intervals and would rather concentrate on the needs of disabled people in those homes. He had charged the Head of Housing to remedy that and reduce that waiting list, including both Council tenants and the general public. They had even funded an additional Occupational Therapist to assist KCC in removing a bottleneck and getting that backlog down.

The Head of Housing confirmed the Leader's comments and clarified that Housing Services had done a lot of work in this area. At that time, the waiting list was standing at around a 2/3 year wait for DFGs and a similar level or longer in certain cases for disabled adaptations to Council properties. They had also been asked to "level the playing field" regardless of whether they were from Council tenants or private individuals. Both the Council and the HRA invested more money into addressing those needs and she was pleased to say that they had reduced the position with most people now waiting for a period of 6/9 months from start to finish of the process and there was currently no-one on the DFG waiting list. It was also worth pointing out that the Council would not remove an adaptation that was still required by a disabled person. It may have to be replaced by an alternative if its useful life had ceased, but it would not be removed. She hoped this therefore demonstrated that the Council had significantly improved the situation and whilst there were financial rules around the funding for such adaptations through different channels, in her view the most important thing was that a Housing Authority actually delivered, and that is what this Authority had been doing. Both the Head of Housing and the new Portfolio Holder for Housing offered to meet Mr Crompton outside of the meeting to discuss this particular matter further if he so wished.

The Head of Community Safety and Wellbeing said that on the substance of the report, it was important to note that there was a massive work stream that the Council and partners would be undertaking on a wide range of health and wellbeing issues and she encouraged all Members to get involved and engaged in this agenda. She wanted to thank partners for the amazing amount of work they undertook to support this programme.

The Leader said he wanted to re-iterate that one of his highest priorities was to disabled and vulnerable people and to be a caring Authority. This Council had introduced a number of measures such as: - assisted waste collections; the Syrian refugee programme where Ashford had taken the most refugees in the country per head of population; dementia and autism friendly film screenings at the new cinema; and working closely with the Ashford Access Group including now inviting them to be a member of the Ashford Strategic Delivery Board.

Resolved:

That (i) the achievements made by the Ashford Health and Wellbeing Board in 2018/19 be noted.

- (ii) the work undertaken by partners in 2018/19 to improve Ashford's response to local, sub-regional and regional health and wellbeing issues be noted and that this hadresulted in the establishment of the Ashford Health and Wellbeing Partnership (AHWP) and the East Kent Health Improvement Partnership (EKHIP).
- (iii) authority be delegated to the Head of Community Safety and Wellbeing to act as the Council's representative on the AHWP and the EKHIP, subject to consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Community Safety and Wellbeing as required. Decisions are likely to be around the priorities of the Groups, as well as activities to deliver them.
- (iv) the action plans to deliver the priorities of the AHWP, and the fact that there may be future resource implications in delivery, be noted.

37 Ashford Borough Heritage Plaque Scheme

The Portfolio Holder introduced the report which sought agreement to the establishment of an Ashford Borough Heritage Plaque Scheme. This was to ensure that noteworthy individuals or buildings from Ashford's past, that were not widely known or formally recognised across the Borough, would have a permanent acknowledgement of their existence. The scheme would address that invisibility, celebrate those past Ashford residents and buildings and promote Ashford's history and heritage to support civic pride. The Portfolio Holder circulated example photographs of the plaque design which had been omitted from the report and pointed out that the proposed colour was green, to personalise it to Ashford and distinguish it from the national blue plaque scheme. He also thanked Officers for their hard work in bringing this scheme forward.

Resolved:

- That (i) the establishment of an Ashford Borough Heritage Plaque Scheme, including the details of the eligibility criteria, scoring and decision making process and design of the plaque as outlined within the report, be supported.
 - (ii) a growth budget of £25,000 (to be taken from reserves) be committed to allow the scheme to be established
 - (iii) the Head of Culture, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Culture, Leisure and Tourism, be authorised to execute and complete all necessary documentation to give effect to the above recommendations.

38 Planning Reorganisation

The Portfolio Holder introduced the report which presented proposals for the reorganisation of the Planning and Development Service. The Cabinet was asked to consider the proposals, the impact this would have on the delivery of service priorities and the consultation process followed. He said this root and branch review was the

culmination of a lot of work from the Head of Planning and Development and his staff, along with the previous Portfolio Holder, and he thanked them for their efforts and fully endorsed the proposals. There had been a significant level of staff consultation and this had been taken account of in the final report. There would be an increased focus on cross departmental working to deal with planning applications, particularly with legal, rather than working in silos. In his view the proposals and proposed management changes would make the team more resilient and put it in a positon to be able to provide a more efficient and effective service.

The Deputy Leader said he supported the report and drew particular attention to the increased strategic focus on infrastructure planning and delivery. He considered this would be crucially important going forward.

The Leader said it was fair to say that the Council had struggled recently to recruit planning staff. They were victims of their own success in a way as extremely good Officers had moved on to more senior positions at other Authorities, but there was also a shortage of qualified Planning Officers nationally with the increased focus on housebuilding. He expected the proposals in the report to begin to assist in this regard.

Resolved:

- That (i) the recommendation of the Joint Consultative Committee of 25th April 2019 be noted.
 - (ii) the implementation of the reorganisation of the Planning and Development Service as outlined in the report be approved.
 - (iii) the potential redundancy costs in the event that Officers are not able to be assimilated or redeployed be approved.

39 Economic Regeneration and Investment Board Notes – 28th March 2019

Resolved:

That the Notes of the Meeting of the Economic Regeneration and Investment Board held on the 28th March 2019 be received and noted.

40 Schedule of Key Decisions to be Taken

Resolved:

That the latest Schedule of Key Decisions as set out within the report be received and noted.

41 Joint Transportation Board – Nomination of Membership



That the following Members be appointed to the Joint Transportation Board:

Councillors Burgess, Forest, Heyes (Ch), Mrs Heyes, Krause, Michael, Ward.

Queries concerning these Minutes? Please contact Member Services: Telephone: 01233 330349 Email: membersservices@ashford.gov.uk Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: http://ashford.moderngov.co.uk